NORTH CAROLINA BEFORE THE NORTH CAROLINA

WAKE COUNTY BOARD OF FUNERAL SERVICE
CASE NO. M22-0005
In the matter of: )
)
Thomie D. Douthit d/b/a )
Douthit Funeral Services and )
Thomie D. Douthit, )
Respondents. )
CONSENT ORDER

THIS CAUSE, coming before the North Carolina Board of Funeral Service

(hereinafter the “Board”) at its offices at 1033 Wade Avenue, Suite 108, Raleigh, North
Carolina 27605, with a quorum present, the Board and Respondents stipulate and agree to
entry of the following Consent Order:

1.

Respondent Establishment is licensed as Funeral Establishment No. 0736 by the
Board and, therefore, is subject to Chapter 90 of the North Carolina General
Statutes and Title 21, Chapter 34 of the North Carolina Administrative Code and
the standards set forth in Funeral Industry Practices, 16 C.F.R. § 453 (1984). For
all times relevant to this proceeding, Respondent Establishment has not held a
preneed establishment permit.

Respondent Individual is licensed as Funeral Director No. 2492 by the Board and,
therefore, is subject to Chapter 90 of the North Carolina General Statutes and Title
21, Chapter 34 of the North Carolina Administrative Code and the standards set
forth in Funeral Industry Practices, 16 C.F.R. § 453 (1984).

For all times relevant to this proceeding, Respondent Individual has served as the
licensed manager of Respondent Establishment. Respondent Individual is the sole
proprietor of Respondent Establishment.

On or about December 4, 2019, Ms. Il met with representatives of Respondent
Establishment to discuss pre-arrangements for her funeral services. At the
conference, Respondent Establishment provided Ms.- with a Statement of
Funeral Goods and Services Selected, unsigned by a licensee, showing a balance
due of $8,000.00.

On or about April 20, 2020, Ms [l paid $8,000.00 to Respondent Establishment
for preneed funeral good and services.
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6. Thereafter, Respondents placed the funds they received from Ms. [Jijinto an
interest-bearing “payable upon death” bank account at the Winston Salem Federal
Credit Union that is jointly owned by Respondents.

7. Respondents have not filed a preneed contract with the Board on behalf of Ms.

8. Respondents’ acceptance of preneed payments from Ms. |JJijto prepay for her
funeral services constitutes the unlicensed practice of preneed funeral service, in
violation of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-210.69(c)(1).

9. Respondents previously have accepted preneed funds from other consumers, in
addition to Ms. [} while unlicensed to do so. Respondents currently hold
interest-bearing “payable upon death” bank accounts at Winston Salem Federal
Credit Union for the following preneed beneficiaries:
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10. In addition to the individuals above, Respondents previously have accepted preneed
funds from the following consumers, while unlicensed to do so:

a.

b.

c.
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11. Respondents have not filed preneed contracts with the Board for any of the preneed
beneficiaries set forth in Paragraphs 9 and 10 above.

12.0n or about January 14, 2022, Ms. Il (through her Power of Attorney)
attempted to direct substitution of Clark S. Brown & Sons, Inc. d/b/a Clark S.
Brown & Sons Funeral Home, PN Funeral Permit No. 0444, instead of Respondent
Funeral Home, to furnish her funeral services and merchandise upon death.
Respondents have failed to comply with the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-
210.63(a)(2), in that Respondents have not immediately paid all preneed funds
received to the successor funeral establishment designated.

13. On or about February 14, 2022, Respondent Establishment applied for a Preneed
Establishment Permit. Said application currently is pending.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Respondents are subject to Chapter 90 of the North Carolina General Statutes and Title
21, Chapter 34 of the North Carolina Administrative Code and the standards set forth
in Funeral Industry Practices, 16 C.F.R. § 453 (1984).

2. Respondents are subject to jurisdiction before the Board.

3. The Board is authorized under Article 3A, Chapter 150B of the North Carolina General
Statutes to hear this matter.

4. The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute a
failure to retain the complete physical files for preneed contracts sold, in violation of
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-210.68(a) and 21 NCAC 34D .0301(b), (c).

5. The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute the
practice of preneed funeral service without holding a preneed establishment permit, in
violation of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-210.67(a).

6. The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute
offering to engage or engaging in activities for which a preneed license is required but
without having obtained such a license, in violation of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-
210.69(c)(1).

7. The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute aiding
and abetting an unlicensed person, firm, partnership, association, corporation or other
entity to engage in preneed funeral service, in violation of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-
210.69(c)(2).



In the Matter of Thomie D. Douthit d/b/a
Douthit Funeral Services and Thomie D. Douthit
Board Case No. M22-0005

Consent Order

Page |4

8.

10.

L1,

12.

13.

14.

I3

16.

The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute a
violation or cooperation with others to violate provisions of Article 13D of Chapter 90
of the NC General Statutes, and rules of the Board, in violation of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-
210.69(c)(6).

The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 violate N.C. Gen.
Stat. § 90-210.25(e)(1)j., which prohibits violating or cooperating with others to violate
the laws, rules and regulations of the Board, as amended from time to time.

The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute a
failure to timely file multiple preneed contracts with the Board, in violation of N.C.
Gen. Stat. § 90-210.67(d), and 21 NCAC 34D .0105.

The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute a
failure to retain the physical files for multiple preneed contracts sold, in violation of
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-210.68(a), and, 21 NCAC 34D .0301(b), (c)(4).

The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute a
failure to retain an at-need SGSS and completed certificate of performance for matured
or cancelled preneed contract files, in violation of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-210.68(a) and
21 NCAC 34D .0301(b) and (e).

The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute a
failure to retain the physical files for multiple preneed contracts performed, in violation
of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-210.68(a) and 21 NCAC 34D .0301(b), (c)(4), (c)(5), and (e).

The acts and omissions of Respondents described in Paragraphs 1-13 constitute a
failure to accurately complete preneed annual reports, in violation of N.C. Gen. Stat. §
90-210.68(a) and 21 NCAC 34D .0302.

One or more of the violations described above were committed by any officer, director,
manager, partner, operator, or member of Respondent Establishment or by any person,
employee, or agent with the consent of any person, firm, or corporation operating it.
Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-210.25(d)(4), the Board has the authority to revoke,
suspend, or refuse to issue or renew the funeral establishment permits of Respondent
Funeral Home, to place Respondent Funeral Home on probation, and/or to assess a civil
penalty not to exceed $5,000.00.

Respondent Individual committed one or more of the violations described above.
Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 210.25(¢e)(1), the Board has the authority to suspend,
revoke, or refuse to issue or renew the funeral director license of Respondent
Individual. However, this Board finds that Respondent Individual remains fit to
practice. Therefore, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-210.25(e)(2), the Board has the
authority to place Respondent Individual on probation, to require satisfactory
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Establishment currently holds a “payable upon death” bank account that
preneed contracts must be executed for an amount equal to, or greater than, the
amounts currently deposited in the “payable upon death” bank accounts;

Within sixty (60) days from the date this Consent Order takes effect,
Respondent Funeral Home shall execute preneed contracts with all consumers
for which Respondents currently holds a “payable upon death” bank account.
Respondents shall provide proof to the Board that they have exercised their best
efforts to comply with this provision. Respondent Funeral Home shall file all
such executed preneed contracts with the Board, along with the $20 filing fee
and $25 late fee for each such contract. If Respondent Funeral Home fails to
comply with this provision, the stay of revocation on the establishment permit
of Respondent Funeral Home shall be immediately lifted;

Within fifteen (15) days from the date this Consent Order takes effect,
Respondents shall transfer to Clark S. Brown & Sons, Inc. d/b/a Clark S. Brown
& Sons Funeral Home, PN Funeral Permit No. 0444, an amount equal to Eight
Thousand Twenty Dollars and 22/100 ($8,020.22), to effectuate the substitution
of preneed trustee of preneed funds paid by |Jjiftc Respondents, in
accordance with the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-210.63(a)(2).

Within thirty (30) days from the date this Consent Order takes effect,
Respondent Establishment shall pay a compromise penalty of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000.00) to the Civil Penalty and Forfeiture Fund in accordance with
Article 31A of Chapter 115C of the North Carolina General Statutes. If
Respondent Establishment fails to pay said compromise penalty within thirty
(30) days of this Consent Order taking effect, the stay of revocation on the
establishment permit of Respondent Funeral Home shall be immediately lifted;

Respondent Establishment shall obtain a surety bond in an amount not less than
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) and shall maintain said bond for at least
five (5) years following the date this Consent Order is executed. Respondent
Establishment shall provide proof to Board staff that it has obtained said surety
bond within thirty (30) days of the date this Consent Order was executed. The
surety bond obtained shall in all ways comply with 21 NCAC 34D .0203, in
addition to any and all other applicable laws and rules. If Respondent
Establishment fails to provide proof that it has obtained a surety bond in an
amount not less than Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) within thirty (30)
days of this Consent Order taking effect, the stay of revocation on the
establishment permit of Respondent Establishment shall be immediately lifted;
and

During the period of probation, Respondent Establishment shall comply with
all statutory and regulatory provisions governing the practice of funeral service.
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CONSENTED TO:

Thomie D. Douthit d/b/a Douthit Funeral Services

'(-7 oy
By: [/ “D(M‘"

Thomie D. Bouthit
Manager

Thomie D. Douthit

Date: 3/ 5/

. |
7 ﬁ RSV Yo .}Iate: S/t

By Order of the North Carolina Board of

Service, this the

lc

—_—

i( day of April,

2022.
By: : ,\l

h E.
Board Preside

2

Whlson
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